
   

                                             Town Council 
Council Chambers 
Windsor Town Hall 

August 1, 2016 
Regular Council Meeting 

 
APPROVED MINUTES 

 

1) ROLL CALL 

Mayor Trinks called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m.  

Present were Mayor Donald Trinks, Councilor Randy McKenney, Councilor Jill Jenkins, Councilor 
Alan Simon, Deputy Mayor Jody Terranova, Councilor Donald Jepsen, Councilor Kenneth Wilkos, 
Councilor James Govoni, and Councilor Bernard Petkis.  

2) PRAYER – Councilor Petkis prayed. 

3) PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – Councilor Petkis led in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

4) PROCLAMATIONS/AWARDS – None 

5) PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS AND PETITIONS – None 

6) REPORT OF APPOINTED BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 
 

a) Inland Wetlands and Watercourses Commission (IWWC)  
 
IWWC Chair, Lou Morando, presented an annual report for 2016. He discussed the types of 
applications received and the results of the applications. Mr. Morando noted that two  
Commissioners resigned from the board.  
 
b) Metropolitan District Commission (MDC) 
 
Tim Curtis, Windsor’s Town Council appointed representative to the MDC Board, explained 
that the CEO of the MDC is now providing regular reports about MDC activities to the Town 
Council members of each MDC member town. He went on to say that the CEO of the MDC 
volunteered to be present at tonight’s Town Council meeting. He added that the MDC’s 
reservoir capacity is currently in very good condition despite the recent drought. Mr. Curtis 
went on to say that in five years, half of the workforce at MDC will be eligible for retirement. 
He said the MDC has an internship program in place with area colleges and they are 
planning to launch an apprentice program for area high school students. 

 
Councilor Jenkins asked if Windsor High School has been provided information about the 
apprentice program. Mr. Curtis said the Town Manager has provided the information to the 
high school.   
 
Councilor Jenkins asked if local colleges will be informed of the internship program. Mr. 
Curtis answered yes. 



Town Council Meeting Minutes                2 
August 1, 2016 

 
Councilor Simon requested that the Town Manager make inquiries regarding the status of 
the other Windsor representative to the MDC, Helene Shay. 

7) TOWN MANAGER'S REPORT 
 

Registration is Open for Windsor Citizen’s Academy 
The seven-week interactive Citizen’s Academy begins on Thursday, September 15th in the 
Town Hall Council Chambers from 7:00 PM to 9:00 PM and will continue on Thursday evenings 
through October 27th at various town facilities including the police station, library and 
community centers.  Participants will go behind the scenes to learn about the day-to-day 
operations of the town departments including what happens when you call 9-1-1, and what it is 
like to be in a snow plow truck.   A tour of the town and meeting a variety of town staff are also 
highlights of the program.   
 
It’s free and anyone 18 years or older living or working in Windsor is welcome to sign-up.  
Register soon by calling 860-285-1835 or by email at: jubrey@townofwindsorct.com. 
 
This Week’s Concert on the Green to Benefit Windsor Food and Fuel Banks 
On Thursday, August 4th before and during the concert on the green, the Windsor Houses of 
Worship (WHOW) civic association will host a collection drive for the Windsor Food & Fuel 
Bank. WHOW, comprised of members of Windsor’s faith-based institutions is holding the 
summer collection to remind the public that food donations for hungry people are needed all 
year long and not just during the November-December holidays. The concert begins at 6:30 
PM.  Concert goers can bring canned and boxed nonperishable food items and several types of 
personal care products to WHOW volunteers located at the Carmon Community Funeral Home 
table on the grass near the stage.  Entertainment at this week’s concert is the Farmington 
Valley Band.  
 
Summer Fun Days in the Park 
The Windsor Police and Youth Services Bureau will be hosting a “Family Fun on the Wild Side” 
event at Deerfield Park this Friday, August 5th from 4:30 PM to 7:30 PM.  This free event for 
Windsor families will feature food, music, safari/nature themed games, a bounce house and a 
Kid ID and crime scene truck.  Previous family events have been held at Lancaster and 
Sharshon Parks this summer.  For more information, call 860-285-1990. 
 
Ending the Crossfire: A Service of Prayer, Appreciation and Compassion 
Windsor’s Hopewell Baptist Church and Union Baptist Church of Hartford will partner with the 
Hartford and Windsor Police Departments in a service of prayer, appreciation and compassion 
for police, firefighters, paramedics, their families and all residents of the greater Hartford 
community. The service will be held this Thursday, August 4th beginning at 7:00 PM at the 
Union Baptist Church, 1921 Main Street in Hartford. 
 
The organizers hope the service will foster a dialogue of understanding, sensitivity, and healing 
at a time when we have all been overwhelmed with shootings and/or killings by police and 
during which police have been shot or killed.  Recent events threaten all communities with 
divisiveness, unrest, and anxiety. 
 
All residents of the greater Hartford community are urged to attend.   



Town Council Meeting Minutes                3 
August 1, 2016 

 
8) COMMUNICATIONS FROM COUNCIL MEMBERS 

 
Councilor Petkis offered condolences to the fallen Dallas Police Officers. He presented a video 
from the free hugs project. 

 
Councilor Simon said there are way too many deaths lately in this country. He said so much of 
that seems to start over not very much at all and then it escalates and there is another death.  
He said that it has been happening for a long time in this country and that he is not okay with it 
and that he thinks it is very important that more people who look like him say that they are not 
okay with it. He said that it is something that we can do something about. Councilor Simon went 
on to say that he thinks a discussion about this issue has started in Windsor, as information is 
being examined that suggests that black people are being pulled over more frequently than 
they should be by the Windsor Police. He said he will do his part to see that the work on this 
subject continues and that we can work on developing procedures that will prevent people’s 
unconscious bias from effecting how they deal with people, therefore reducing the opportunity 
for a minor issue to become a major issue. He said the wants more white people to discuss this 
issue. 
 
Councilor McKenney said that so often this issue is considered to be a black and white issue, 
but he had a relative, twenty five year old Seneca Darden, was shot and killed while in the line 
of duty as a police officer in Norfolk, Virginia. 
 
Councilor Govoni spoke of the wonderful time that transpired at the Wilson Carnival this past 
weekend. He highlighted the positive interactions that occurred between youth and police. He 
said over 3,000 people participated on Thursday, Friday and Saturday. 
 
Councilor Jenkins thanked the Police Chief and Councilor Petkis. He said that the shootings 
have been tragic and that she has recently attended forums and spoken with the Police Chief. 
She said she noticed that at the forums the majority of people are people of color. She said that 
this is a time when we all need to come together and that it would really be great if we saw 
more white faces at these discussions. Councilor Jenkins said the current events have given 
the community an opportunity to see each other as human beings. She said we need to be 
brave enough to take this issue to the next level and discuss things that we normally do not 
want to discuss. She said we need to acknowledge the problem and start making plans to fix 
them. 
 
Councilor Wilkos – Nothing tonight. 
 
Deputy Mayor Terranova said she agrees with Councilor Simon and said she would try to 
attend the forums on the subject of the recent violence. She asked the Town Manager to 
provide copies of annual reports from the companies that previously received abatements. 

 
Councilor Jepsen expressed his optimism that the troubles of the nation will not touch Windsor 
because Windsor will not allow it.   

 
Mayor Trinks - Nothing tonight.   
 



Town Council Meeting Minutes                4 
August 1, 2016 

 
9)  REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES 

Town Improvements Committee – Councilor Simon said the Town Improvements Committee met 
on July 11th and that its recommendations would be discussed tonight under agenda items. 

Health & Safety Committee – None 

Joint Town Council/Board of Education Committee – None 

Personnel Committee – None 

Special Projects Committee – None 

Finance Committee – None  
 

10)    ORDINANCES – None 

11)    UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

a) Approve Fiscal Year 2017 Community Investment Initiative 
 
Councilor Simon MOVED and Councilor Jepsen seconded that the FY 17 proposed 
Community Investment Initiative projects be approved per the Town Improvements  
Committee’s recommendations. 
 
Councilor Simon provided background information on how the Town Improvements 
Committee made its final recommendations.  
 
Councilor Govoni asked what the sidewalk repairs funding is.  Town Manager Souza 
explained that there is a total of $175,000 dedicated to sidewalk repairs and curb 
repairs.  
 
Councilor Simon said that there is $380,000 in funds in the budget for new sidewalks on 
Cook Hill Road. 

 
Motion Passed 9-0-0 

 
b) Approve Fiscal Year 2017 – Fiscal Year 2022 Capital Improvements Plan 

 
Councilor Simon MOVED and Councilor Jepsen seconded that the proposed FY 2017-
2022 Capital Improvements Plan be approved as presented. 
 
Councilor Simon referred Council members to the project details presented in the 
agenda packet. 

 
Motion Passed 9-0-0 

 



Town Council Meeting Minutes                5 
August 1, 2016 

 
c) Approve resolution regarding grant for Transit Oriented Development / Animal Shelter 

relocation project and approve an appropriation of $15,000 for design services. 
 
Councilor Govoni MOVED and Councilor McKenney seconded to adopt the attached 
resolution for state financial assistance under the TOD and Responsible Growth 
Incentive Fund program and to approve an appropriation of $15,000 from the Capital 
Projects Assigned Fund Balance for project design services. 
 
Town Manager Souza provided an overview of the grant, including the state’s 
requirement that Windsor provide a percentage cash match. He said the grant is a 
reimbursement grant and that preliminary estimates call for $150,000 in local costs for 
the dog pound portion of the project and about $60,000 in local costs for remediation. 
 
Mayor Trinks spoke in favor of moving forward with the grant-funded project. 
 
Councilor Govoni said the project is an example of local government working for the 
people. He explained that the forest that will be impacted was planted after World War II. 
 
Councilor Simon said the Town Council is at the point where this project can get done. 
 
Councilor Petkis thanked town staff for making progress on the project. 

 
Motion Passed 9-0-0 
 

d) Approve sidewalk/multi-use path along segments of Day Hill Road per Section 15-33 of  
the Windsor Code of Ordinances 
 
Councilor Jepsen MOVED and Deputy Mayor Terranova seconded to approve, per Town 
of Windsor Code of Ordinances Section 15-33, the construction of the proposed multi-use 
path sections as outlined in the attached location map. 
 
Town Manager Souza explained that this is the first of several items on tonight’s agenda on 
the subject of the multi-use path along segments of Day Hill Road. 

 
Motion Passed 9-0-0 
 

e) Approve an ordinance entitled, “AN ORDINANCE APPROPRIATING $190,000 FOR 
COSTS IN CONNECTION WITH DAY HILL ROAD PEDESTRIAN CIRCULATION 
IMPROVEMENTS; AND AUTHORIZING THE ISSUE OF $190,000 BONDS AND  
NOTES TO FINANCE THE APPROPRIATION.”  
 
Councilor Jepsen MOVED and Deputy Mayor Terranova seconded to adopt the following 
ordinance: RESOLVED, that the reading into the minutes of the text of the ordinance 
entitled, “AN ORDINANCE APPROPRIATING $190,000 FOR COSTS IN CONNECTION 
WITH DAY HILL ROAD PEDESTRIAN CIRCULATION IMPROVEMENTS; AND 
AUTHORIZING THE ISSUE OF $190,000 BONDS AND NOTES TO FINANCE THE 
APPROPRIATION” is hereby waived, the full text of the ordinance having been 
distributed to each member of the Council and copies made available to those persons 



Town Council Meeting Minutes                6 
August 1, 2016 

 
attending this meeting; and the full text of the ordinance be recorded with the minutes of 
this meeting.” 
 
Motion Passed 9-0-0 
 
Councilor Jepsen MOVED and Councilor Simon seconded to approve a bond ordinance 
entitled, “AN ORDINANCE APPROPRIATING $190,000 FOR COSTS IN CONNECTION 
WITH DAY HILL ROAD PEDESTRIAN CIRCULATION IMPROVEMENTS; AND 
AUTHORIZING THE ISSUE OF $190,000 BONDS AND NOTES TO FINANCE THE 
APPROPRIATION.”  
 
Town Manager Souza provided a recap of the proposed pedestrian circulation 
improvements, including the location. He said the first year of debt service on the 
$190,000 bond would be approximately $20,000 based on a 12 year term and 2.25% 
interest rate. 
 
Councilor Govoni said the pedestrian improvements will have an effect on vehicular 
traffic flow unless there is high-tech signalization put into place. 
 
Town Manager Souza said the town has been awarded a grant for over $1 million that 
will provide for the planning and installation of a synchronized signalization system on 
Day Hill Road. 
 
Councilor Petkis asked for the specific portions of road to be covered by the grant. Town 
Manager Souza said it would cover Lamberton Road to the west for the length of the 
corridor.  
 
Motion Passed 9-0-0 

12)   NEW BUSINESS 

a) Approve closing out Day Hill Road Pedestrian Improvement projects and transferring the 
balances into the Capital Projects Assigned Fund Balance 

Councilor Jepsen MOVED and Deputy Mayor Terranova seconded that the following 
projects be closed and the remaining funds totaling $182,487.87 be transferred into the 
Capital Projects Fund Assigned Fund Balance: FY 13 Day Hill Road Pedestrian 
Improvements project (#9417); and FY 15 Day Hill Road Pedestrian Improvements project 
(#9444); and that $180,000 be appropriated and transferred from the Capital Projects Fund 
Assigned Fund Balance to the FY 17 Day Hill Road Pedestrian Circulation Improvements 
project.  

Town Manager Souza provided a brief summary of the agenda item. 

Councilor Jepsen asked if the project proposed to be closed out was funded with bonded 
money. Town Manager Souza answered yes.  



Town Council Meeting Minutes                7 
August 1, 2016 

 
Councilor Jepsen asked if closing out a project funded with  bonded money and then using 
that money for another project is problematic in any way.  Town Manager Souza said that 
based on the advice of Bond Counsel, there is no problem. 

 
Motion Passed 9-0-0 

 
b) Approve an appropriation of $180,000 from the Capital Projects Assigned Fund Balance 

for the FY 17 Day Hill Road Pedestrian improvement project 
 
This agenda item was incorporated into the previous agenda item. 

 
c) Approve easements for sidewalk/multi-use path along segments of Day Hill Road 

 
Councilor Jepsen MOVED and Councilor Jenkins seconded to accept the eight (8) 
easements described in this memorandum and shown on the attached maps entitled 
“Sidewalk Easements to be Conveyed to the Town of Windsor,” prepared by the Town of 
Windsor Engineering Department, dated June 28, 2016.” 
 
Town Manager Souza said the eight easements are on the north side of Day Hill Road 
and that each affected property owner has agreed to the easements. He said that an 
easement involving the ComTrust Credit Union is still being finalized, so it is not a part of 
the easements being presented tonight. 
 
Councilor Jenkins asked if the easement approvals have been committed to in writing by 
the businesses. Town Manager Souza said that the Town Engineer and the Town 
Economic Development Director have met with each of the impacted businesses and 
that they have given verbal commitments and in some cases written commitments.  
 
Councilor Jenkins expressed her desire that the easements be properly recorded.  

 
Motion Passed 9-0-0 

 
d) Authorize Local Capital Improvement Grant Program application. 

 
Deputy Mayor Terranova MOVED and Councilor Jepsen seconded to adopt the following 
resolution: “RESOVLED that an application be executed for the State of Connecticut for 
a Local Capital Improvement Program (LoCIP) grant to perform pavement management 
and other eligible work, and that when received, the LoCIP funds will reimburse Capital 
Project Account No. 9041 “LoCIP Program.” 
 
Town Manager Souza asked Town Engineer, Bob Jarvis, to provide an overview of the 
agenda item. Town Engineer Jarvis provided an overview of the grant as well as the 
road work to be submitted for reimbursement under the grant program.  
 
Councilor Wilkos asked for clarification regarding the requirement that the work at issue 
be performed prior to being submitted for reimbursement. Town Engineer Jarvis 
confirmed that the grant request for reimbursement will not be submitted to the State of 
Connecticut until the construction work is fully performed.  



Town Council Meeting Minutes                8 
August 1, 2016 

 
Motion Passed 9-0-0 

 
e) Introduce Fixed Assessment Agreement with Fabcon Precast, LLC. 

 
At Town Manager Souza’s request, Economic Development Director, Jim Burke, 
provided an overview of the fixed assessment request made by Fabcon Precast, LLC. 
He listed the estimated tax dollars that would be abated as well as the tax dollars that 
would be received by the town. He explained that a draft fixed assessment agreement 
has been provided to the Council members as of today.  
 
Ryan Ksiazek, project manager from Fabcon, provided information about the company’s 
desire to expand in the New England area and the factors that the company is taking 
into consideration as it determines its new location. Mr. Ksiazek provided information 
about the company’s workforce as well as its employee pay and benefits. 
 
Councilor Petkis asked for an explanation about truck traffic and what types of trucks 
would be going to and from the facility.  Mr. Ksiazek said the trucks would use Day Hill 
Road. He explained that 50 to 100 truck trips per day are expected and that the truck 
traffic to and from the facility would not hit the outside of morning and afternoon rush 
hours. He said the employees are split shift and they would come in and out during off 
peak times. 
 
Councilor Govoni asked if the proposal for co-generation would emit a lot of noise. Mr. 
Ksiazek answered no and provided conceptual information about the high pressure  
steam system being considered.  
 
Councilor Jenkins asked Mr. Ksiazek to elaborate on emissions on the site, including use 
of epoxy. Mr. Ksiazek answered no to emissions and to epoxy. He said any painting 
would take place in the field. He said only mixing takes place on site.   
 
Councilor Simon sought clarification about hourly wages. Mr. Ksiazek provided that 
information. 
 
Councilor Simon expressed his pleasure with language in the draft agreement that 
mandates that the company maintains certain wage levels in order to continue to qualify 
for the abatement.  
 
Councilor Wilkos asked if the state abatement on the manufacturing equipment is 
permanent. Mr. Burke answered yes.   
 
Councilor Wilkos asked if after the five year abatement expires if the taxes paid to the 
town would be approximately $200,000 per year. Mr. Burke said $297,000 annually is 
the estimated yearly amount.  
 
Councilor Wilkos expressed concern about activities at the factory negatively impacting 
the nearby waterways. Mr. Ksiazek explained that any water used in the process has to 
be disposed of via a regulated sewer system.  He said the company recycles water as 
much as it can.  



Town Council Meeting Minutes                9 
August 1, 2016 

 
 
Councilor Wilkos commented that the tree line on the property would obscure much of 
the view of the building from the public road. 
 
Councilor Jepsen asked if Fabcon is for sale.  Mr. Ksiazek said the company has been 
sold to a private equity group, with the closing expected very soon. 
 
The Councilors reached a consensus that the Finance Committee would review the 
application for a fixed assessment agreement. 
 
Motion Passed 9-0-0 

 
f) Approve Director of Public Works / Town Engineer job description and amend Public 

Works Operations Superintendent job description 
 
Deputy Mayor Terranova MOVED and Councilor Jepsen seconded that the job 
description for the position of Director of Public Works / Town Engineer be approved as 
presented and incorporated in Grade 3 of the administrative pay plan, that the job titles 
of Director of Public Works and Town Engineer be deleted from the administrative pay 
plan and that the amended Public Works Operations Manager job description be 
approved as presented. 
 
Town Manager Souza reviewed the key responsibilities that would be held by the new 
position.  Human Resources Director, Amelia Bliss, said the physical demands sections 
for the job descriptions have been updated. She listed the significant changes proposed 
for the Operations Manager job description, including education and work experience.  
 
Councilor Petkis asked why the reduction in education level for the Operations Manager 
position is being proposed. Ms. Bliss explained the need for the change, citing that 
experience is a better indicator in doing the job than having a Bachelor’s degree is. She 
said the current education level may prevent highly qualified people from applying. 
 
Deputy Mayor Terranova said she thinks this is a nice melding of the two positions to 
create one position and create flexibility. 
 
Councilor Simon said he thinks approving the merging of the job descriptions is in effect 
approving a departmental reorganization. He said that more thought and consideration 
should be given before reorganizing the second largest department in town. He 
suggested delaying the vote on the proposed job description merger until after an 
assessment of the Public Works Department could be performed.  He said that such an 
assessment would provide an unbiased analysis about the way the department has 
been managed. 
 
Councilor Wilkos expressed agreement with Councilor Simon and Deputy Mayor 
Terranova. He said his bigger concern is with the changing of the verbiage in the 
Operations Manager job description position because he thinks the person in that senior 
position should have a Bachelor’s degree. Ms. Bliss noted that a person with a 
Bachelor’s degree could apply. 



Town Council Meeting Minutes                10 
August 1, 2016 

 
 
The Mayor left the Council Chambers at 9:05 p.m. 
 
Councilor McKenney expressed concern about the two former job titles existing in the 
title for the new position. He said the title for the new job should either be Public Works 
Director or Engineer in order to eliminate confusion about the new position. Town 
Manager Souza provided information about how a fair number of communities across 
the country and the state combine the Director and Engineer positions. He went on to 
discuss the levels of operation that would exist under the combined position. Town 
Manager Souza explained that he is considering proposing adding a position in FY 18 
that would focus on the business, customer service and performance measures side of 
the DPW operation. 
 
Councilor Jenkins said it makes sense to take a step back and have an evaluation 
performed of the Public Works organization.  
 
Mayor Trinks returned to the Council Chambers at 9:10 p.m. 
 
Councilor Petkis said it does appear that the proposed job description change 
constitutes a departmental restructuring and that an independent examination of the 
department as a whole should be done. 
 
Councilor Govoni said that he believes the positions of Director of Public Works and 
Engineer can be combined effectively, but that the departmental operations need to be 
reviewed prior to the combination. 
 
Mayor Trinks expressed agreement with Councilor Govoni that the positions of Director 
and Engineer could be successfully combined with the right employee in place.  
 
Councilor Simon asked that at the next council meeting there be an agenda item to 
discuss the possibility of having an outside review of the Public Works Department.  He 
also is concerned that by combining the positions that the town will not have a broad-
based pool of candidates to choose from and that an opportunity will be lost to search 
beyond the town’s borders for talent. 
 
Councilor Jepsen said it makes sense to combine the Director and Engineer positions. 
He also said it makes sense to examine the Public Works organization as a whole. 
 
Town Manager Souza asked the Town Council to consider moving forward tonight with 
the proposed changes to the Operations Manager position in consideration of the fact 
that the employee in the current position has significant institutional knowledge and the 
town would like to have an overlap with the incumbent and a new recruit for the position. 
 
Deputy Mayor Terranova withdrew her motion.  
 
Deputy Mayor Terranova MOVED and Councilor Jepsen seconded that the proposed job 
description for the Operations Manager position be approved as presented.  
 



Town Council Meeting Minutes                11 
August 1, 2016 

 
Councilor Wilkos MOVED to amend the motion so that the proposed job description for 
the Operations Manager position be adopted as presented with the exception being that 
the current educational requirement for a four year degree go unchanged. Councilor 
Simon seconded.  
 
Councilor Wilkos explained that the higher education level is justified given the 
competencies required of this managerial position.  
 
Councilor Jepsen asked if most of the grade two jobs require a Bachelor’s degree. Ms. 
Bliss answered yes and said that most of the other grade two jobs are in the professional 
realm.  
 
Deputy Mayor Terranova inquired about the education levels that other towns require for 
this position. Ms. Bliss said the requirements vary in terms of what they require.  
 
Councilor McKenney spoke in favor of the recommended change from a four year 
degree to a two year degree so that experienced people without a four year degree 
would not be prevented from applying.  
 
Councilor Govoni said that towns have different names for this position and that he 
thinks that a Bachelor’s degree can open up doors for people but does not replace 
necessary experience in the field.  
 
Mayor Trinks asked what the Bachelor’s degree had to be in. Ms. Bliss answered Civil 
Engineering or Construction Management.  
 
Councilor Petkis suggested including language in the job description stating that an 
Associate’s degree is required and a Bachelor’s degree is desirable.  
 
Councilor Jenkins said she supports the Associate’s degree as a minimum requirement 
because doing so would open up the applicant pool.  
 
Mayor Trinks called for a vote on Councilor Wilkos’ motion to amend. The Motion Failed 
1-0-8 with Councilor Wilkos voting in favor and all other Councilors voting in opposition. 
 
Mayor Trinks called for a vote on Deputy Mayor Terranova’s motion.  
 
Motion Passed 8-1-0 (Councilor Wilkos opposed) 

 
g) Approve amendments to Finance Department job descriptions. 

 
Councilor Simon MOVED and Councilor McKenney seconded that the job descriptions 
for the positions of Finance Director, Assistant Finance Director, and Accountant be 
amended and approved as presented. 
 
Ms. Bliss provided an overview of the proposed amendments to the three job 
descriptions. She explained the different functions of each job.  
 



Town Council Meeting Minutes                12 
August 1, 2016 

 
Councilor Govoni expressed support of the proposed amendments. He said they are a 
road map for the whole department.  
 
Deputy Mayor Terranova asked why there is a proposed departmental name change. 
Town Manager Souza explained that “Administrative Services” is the name of the 
department in the annual budget. 
 
Motion Passed 9-0-0 
 

h) Approve expenditure of $50,000 from the Police Private Duty Account for evaluation and 
study of town-wide public safety radio system 
 
Councilor Simon MOVED and Councilor Jepsen seconded to approve an appropriation 
of up to $50,000 from the Police Private Duty Account for the Public Safety Radio 
System Evaluation and Study. 
 
Town Manager Souza asked the Police Chief, Donald Melanson, and Fire Administrator, 
Paul Goldberg, to speak about the need to evaluate the radio system.   
 
Councilor Govoni said he would like all users of the system to be involved in the 
discussion about the new system, so everyone can explain their needs and they can 
understand why other users are on the system.   
 
Councilor Petkis expressed thanks for this issue moving forward. He said it was a 
serious safety issue. 
 
Councilor Jepsen asked if the town owns its frequencies. Fire Administrator Goldberg 
said the town owns all of the frequencies that it transmits.  
 
Councilor Jepsen asked if we need to buy more frequencies. Fire Administrator 
Goldberg said that the town’s consultant would make a recommendation about buying 
more frequencies. 
 
Motion Passed 9-0-0 
 

i) Authorize the Town Manager to negotiate and execute a Purchase and Sales 
Agreement for 100 Addison Road and approve an appropriation of $15,000 from the 
Capital Projects Assigned Fund Balance for professional services related to acquisition. 
 
Councilor Jepsen MOVED and Deputy Mayor Terranova seconded to authorize the 
Town Manager to negotiate and enter into a purchase and sales agreement relative to 
acquiring 100 Addison Road and to approve a $15,000 appropriation from the Capital 
Projects Fund Assigned Fund Balance for inspection and professional services. 
 
Town Manager Souza explained that the motion is a result of the town’s ongoing efforts 
to examine building and space needs for Public Works, Police, Fire and EMS. He 
provided an overview of the current buildings serving those departments. He said that if 
acquired, the facility at 100 Addison Road would be used for Public Works operations 



Town Council Meeting Minutes                13 
August 1, 2016 

 
and for the potential future relocation of the Police Department. Town Manager Souza 
highlighted the key building and space needs for Public Works and Public Safety 
departments and discussed how the property at 100 Addison Road stands to meet those 
needs. He listed the various events that would need to take place in order for the 
purchase and sales agreement to result in the town actually acquiring the building and 
land at 100 Addison Road.   
 
Councilor Jepsen left the Council Chambers at 10:05 p.m. and returned at 10:10 p.m. 
 
Councilor Govoni spoke in favor of the motion. He said he sees the advantage of having 
Public Works storage close to the Public Works building. He said that he is not in favor of 
spending a lot of money on the current Public Works facility. 
 
Councilor Jenkins noted that the facility at 100 Addison Road offers the space to bring 
the community in to interact with members of the Windsor Police Department. She said 
she supports the motion for this and many other reasons. 
 
Councilor Petkis said the property at Addison Road is a property that the Police 
Department can grow into. He said he supports the motion. 
 
Motion Passed 8-0-1 (Councilor Simon in opposition) 

13)    RESIGNATIONS AND APPOINTMENTS 
 

Deputy Mayor Terranova MOVED and Councilor Jepsen seconded to accept the resignation of 
Robert Gustafson from the Public Building Commission effective November 30, 2016 and to 
accept the resignation of Helene Shay from the Zoning Board of Appeals.   
 
Motion Passed 9-0-0 
 
Deputy Mayor Terranova MOVED and Councilor Jepsen seconded to appoint Warren Johnson 
as a Republican member to the Great Pond Improvement District Board for a four year term to 
expire July 20, 2020 or until a successor is appointed.  
 
Motion Passed 9-0-0 

14)    MINUTES OF PRECEDING MEETINGS 
 

a) Minutes of the July 5, 2016 Public Hearing (Stone Road) 
 

Councilor Jepsen MOVED and Councilor Jenkins seconded to accept the unapproved 
minutes of the July 5, 2016 Public Hearing (Stone Road). 
 
Motion Passed 9-0-0 
 

b) Minutes of the July 5, 2016 Regular Town Council meeting 
 

Councilor Jepsen MOVED and Deputy Mayor Terranova seconded to accept the 
unapproved minutes of the July 5, 2016 Regular Town Council meeting. 



Town Council Meeting Minutes                14 
August 1, 2016 

 
 

Motion Passed 9-0-0 

15)    PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS AND PETITIONS 
 

Deb Samson of 604 Stone Road thanked the Town Council for its action regarding the 
acceptance of the grant award for the Dog Pound relocation grant. She individually thanked 
each member of the Town Council as well as other members of town staff.  

16)    EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

a) Strategy and Negotiations with respect to collective bargaining (WPDEA) 
 

Councilor Jepsen MOVED and Deputy Mayor Terranova seconded to enter into 
executive session for the purpose of strategy and negotiations with respect to collective 
bargaining (WPDEA). 
 
Motion Passed 9-0-0 at 10:22 p.m. 
 
All members of the Town Council, except Councilor Petkis, entered the Ludlow Room for 
Executive Session.  Joining members of the Council were Town Manager Souza, 
Director of Human Resources Amelia Bliss, Police Chief Donald Melanson, and 
Assistant Town Manager Jonathan Luiz.  

 
Councilor Jepsen MOVED and Councilor McKenney seconded to end Executive 
Session.  
 
Motion Passed 8-0-0 (Councilor Petkis out of room) at 10:38 p.m. 

17)    ADJOURNMENT 
 

Councilor Jepsen MOVED and Councilor McKenney seconded to adjourn the meeting.   
 
Motion Passed 8-0-0 (Councilor Petkis out of room) at 10:38 p.m. 

 
Respectfully Submitted, 

 
 

Jonathan Luiz 
Assistant Town Manager 


